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1his form 1S tor use 1n nominating or requestlng aeterminations ot eilgibility tor
incdividual propertles or d1STricts. See lnstructlons 1n Guldelines tor completing
National Redister torms (Nationali Reaglster Bulletin lb). <Complete each item Dy
marking "¥" 1n the Appropriace DOX or DV entering the reguested latormation. LE an
1Tem Qoes not apDLY CO Che DIOperctvy oelng documented, enter "N/A" ror "not

iLT

appLicapie.”" por runcrions, Styles, materiats, and areas OrL Signiricance, enter
only the categories ana subcategories iisted 1n the 1nstructlons. Kor aaditional
sSpace use continuation sneets {dorm LU-vyuta). 'ype all entries. use tetter

guality printer 1n lZ pitch, Using an %5 space line ana a LU space (ett margin.
Use only arcnivai paper {ZU pound, acia rree paper witn a 2% aikallne reserve).

i, Name 9or “roperty

Nistoric name Hal3d3, GeQrge, rwarmstead

other names/site numbey Kozlik, Krank, karmsteac

2. Lgcation

street & numper #-1113 County Trumk Highway F N/A not tor publication
CilTY, TOown Montpeiier Townsnip N/A vicinicy
state Wisconsin code Wl county Kewaunee code _Ubl Z1lp _code 54211

3. Classitication

Ownership ot Property Category of Property No. ot Resources within Property
_X_ private _X_building(s) contributing noncontributing
____ public-local __ districet 8 __ buiidings
____ bublic-state ____site . sSites
___ public-Federal ____structure - ______ structures
___ object — _____oObjects

8 __U_ ‘Potal

Name of related multipie property 1i1sting: - No. ot contributing resources

previously listed in the
N/A National Register U




4, srate/weqeratl Agency CertlilCariof

As the deslgnated authority unaer the National Historlc Preservation ACTt ot LlYbb,
as amended, [ herepy certiiy That thls _X nomlnation __ reguest ror aeterminacion
0t eil1g1bliity meets the aocumentation standards ror redlstering properties 1in tne
National Reglster ot HistoriC Places and meets the procedural and proressional
requirements set torth in 36 CKR Part oU. Lln my opinion, The property _X meets

aoes not meet the National Reglster criteria. see continuation sheec.
)7 ////4722;27 12//1/‘:7.2~
bzzf§%g§;§?' Certirying Orriclal Uate
State storic Preservation Officer WI

jtate or Kederal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property __meets _ _ does not meet the National Register
criteria. See continuation sneet.
slgnature oL commentlng or otner orriciai bate

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
1, herepy, certity that this property 1s:
y fntered in the

¥ _entered 1n tne Nationai keqglster. thjn-:; Tagint o

____ See continuation sheet ) ék—é;AA—b4V§9~7/ag4,, 92/4?453

=

determined eliqgible tor the National
Register. See continuation sheet

determined not eligible tor the
National Reglster.

removed trom the Natlional Reglister.

other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date
6. Functions or Use
Historic Functions Current Functions
(enter categories from instructions) (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC/single dwelling DOMESTIC/single dwelling
AGRICULTURE/ agricultural AGRICULTURE/ agricultural

outbuildings outbuildings




i. bescraiption
Architectural Classitication Materials
(enter categories trom instructlions) (enter cateqgories trom instructions)

tounaation stone

italianate wails Hricxk
wooda
100t Asphalt
other Log
wood

Describe present and NisSTOorlcC DNYSICAL appearance.

The agricultural compiex Known hlstoricalilly as the Ceorge Halada Farmstead consists
ot a 4.3U acre portion or a larger 118.UU acre tormer dalry tarm set on the rolling
open land that characterizes the area. The tarmstead 15 itocated on the south side
of CTH K at a location that is approximately one-halt mille east ot the intersectlon
rormed Dy the nortin-south running CPH V and tne east-west running CI'H ¥. 't'hls
rarmsteaq is Located 1n Montpeller ''oOwWnsnip approximateiy One-and-a-nalr milies
northeast or the community Of Pilisen 1n Kewaunee County. '‘he puligings and
structures within the JdistriCct comprise an excellent anc remarkapbly intact brick
italianate-inrivenced Gapied Eli [Orm residence bullt by George and Catherine Halada
in 1878, tour timper frame agricuitural outbUl:dings DUllt DY the Haladas (including
one that now 2nCiloses a (09 DAarn that may pregate the Halada ownersnip) and ctnree
later tarm outbuiidings tnat were pullt atter the property passed trom tne Haladas
to thelr daughter ana son-in-law, Catherine and kmil kKalebeck, and then To the
kdiepeck's daughter, Anna, ang her huspband, Frank Xoziik. ‘''he tarmstead 15
significant for 1ts rfine 1Ntact tfarmnouse anad tor 1TS Nignly 1nTact group ot
assorciated ana later agricuiltural rarm outbul.idings.

51X Of the elgnC 1ndilvidual resources within Cne complex are daistriputed around the
perimeter ot a roughlty rectilinear tarmyard that 15 reached via a <5u-toot-long
gravel driveway that enters the tarmsteac trom CIH £. The two remaining resources
(Map Nos. 5 & b) are reached via a gravel drive that extends south another 250 teet
trom the southwest corner of the tarmyard. ‘'‘hese resources consist ot 8 bulldings
and include: tne original brick-veneered Gablea kl! rorm farmhouse Halaaa built tor
his own use 1n 1878 (Map No. l); a small hip-roofed frame construction garage (Map
No. 2); a sizeable gable-roofed timber trame animal barn that was puilt ca.l878 and
that incorporates within in it a smaller gable-roofed log barn (Map No. 3); a large
gable-rooted timber trame threshing barn that was built ca.ls78 (Map No. 4); a gable-
roofed timper frame machine shed that was built ca.l87/8 (Map No. %) and that is now
attached to a second smaller gable-rooted timber frame machine shed building (Map
No. 6) by a hyphen; a gable-roofed wood-working shop built by Kozlik in 1941 (Map
No. 7) that is now connected to an "L" plan machine shop (Map No. 8) by a flat-
rooted hyphen. ‘'The residence (which has never had central heating or indoor
plumbing) 1s in an exceptionaily intact original state, as are most ot the timber
trame outbuiidlngs and the newest outbuildings. ‘he oniy tarm building that has
been seriously altered is the original log barn, but the larger timper trame barn
that now encloses it 1s believed to have 1tsS own significance. Also, the small
hyphens that now connect buildings No. 5 & 6 and 7 & 8 have not diminished the
significance or these buildings. Several ot the farm bulidlngs are now ln poor
conaition, nowever, and builalngs No. 5 and 8 may now be teco tar gone to save.

'ne followlng inventory Lists each bullding 1n the tarmstead by map numper anag gives
a description or each, the orlginal and current use, whether the building is
contributing or non-contributing to the d1strict, and an assessment ot each
building's physical condition.

X See continuation sheet
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M3ap No. L George ana catnerine Haitaaa Residence contripuring ca.Lyiyg~

This bullaing 1S the original tarmnouse DULIT DY George Halada ca.ilygr§, and 1s an
excellent example of the ltailanate style design as applled To a gabled eLl torm
houce. 'I'ne house 1S almosSt rectillnear 1n Dian and measures Si-teet-Long by Jo-teet-
deep. ‘'he overali deslgn 1s Cyplcai or itallanate style-1lnrluenced gaplea eli tform
houses 1in Wiscensin in that 1t N&s a Lront gable upright wing ana a snorter
perpendicutarly placed side gable wing, which 1n thls 1nstance 1S attached in such 3
way as Lo aimost pisect the east-tacing side elevation Oof the main wing. Botn ot
these wings are rectillnear in plan. ‘I'he upright i35 cone-and-a-halt-stories 1n
helght ana measures approximately zb-teet-lonag by sh-teet-deep, and tnis wing is
surmounced by an aspnatt-shingle-coverea gable roor whose ridgeline runs ln a north-
soutn direction. ‘‘he side wing 1s one-story in height, measures approximateLy 25-
teet-long by 33-treet-deep, and it 1S also surmounted DYy & shailow-pitched gable root
whose riageline runs 1n an east-west direction. Part ot the width ot the side wing
consists ot the nnegual widths of Two one-story very shallow-pitchea nipped root
ells that run the tull iength or the north and South 2ievations Of The wing.

The exterlor walls Of Doth Wihgs and their supporting framework rest on tieidstone
toundation walls that are now covered over by a battered concrete piinth that
encircles the house. ‘The sioplng surtace ot the plinth 15 tashioned so as to
resemble ashiar stone DloCKS separatea by raised, beadeg mortar Jjolnts and was addea
1n 191i44. These roundatilon wWails enclose & Crawlispace under the maln wWlng and under
much or the sice wing as well, but there 1s aiso a barrel vaulted cellar space
located pelow the central axis ot the side wing and running tne length or it. [t 1is
accessed trom a staircase ott the kitchen and is Lit by a single basement window.
The barrei-vaulted six-toot-tall celiling ot this space and the wallis are sided in
the same cream brick that covers most of the nouse's exterior and several metal
hooks that are imptanted in this celling suggest that the space was once used tor
curing meat ana ror food storage.

The exterior walls of the house are covered tor the most part in cream brick, the
bottom twelve courses of which difter slightly in color from those above them.
These walls are terminated by broad tascia boards, overhanging boxed eaves, and
crown molding.

The north and south-facing principal tacades 0t George Halada's house are very
simitar to each other, but the north-tacing facade, being the one tnat faces the
highway, 1s the more important of the two. This asymmetrically designed facade is

* The construction dates for thils builaing and for the other timber trame resources
within the d1sCrict come from Cax records kept 1n the Kewaunes County Courthouse Ln
Kewaunee. 1Two ot the later buildings nave dates inscribed in tneir interiors.

% The construction date is inscribed in the top ot the plintn founaation on the
nortn-facing eievation ot the building at the juncture ot the two wings.
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eorde Halaga rarmsteaa, Town Of Montpeiler, Kewaunee county, Wwisconsin
section numper 1 rage 4

composed Ot the north-tacing elevations of Doth The maln Wing on the right and the
side wWlng on the lert. ‘he maln wing visually dominates the side wilng.

The north front eievation or The uprignt 13 asymmetriCai and tnree bays wice. 'the
Two right-nand pays or the I1Ist sStory contain tall segmentati-arched window
openings. Both of these openings serve the tront parior/lilving room ot the house,
nave wooden siils, and are crowned with italianate style-derived segmentally archea
corpelled Drick nOood molds wnose VOUSSOLlYrsS and enlardged Keystones are tormea with
alternating red ang CIEam-COLOI®Q SCLQler-Coursed DricxsS. these TWC WiINAOW
openlngs, Lixe aii Of {nils nNouse's Winuow openings, are rillag witn their origlnal
TWO-OVer-two 11gnt couble hung windews, Windows wihosSe upper sash stiil retaln thelr
arcned shape. I'he lett-hand pay contalins a tall segqmental arcned entrance aoor
opening that 1s reached DY asSCendlng tinree concrete steps. ‘1'his openlng contains
the original wooden entrancCe 4o0r, Wnich reatures two Ttail, thlin Semi-clrculiar-
arcned lights placea above two panels. ''he door 1S SUrmounted by a seqmentaL-arcinza
two-light transom and a soldier course corbelied head.

Still visible on the wail surtace between the rirst and sSeconc StOries are tne Sawed
ott ends ot tour large beams that supported the second sStory tioor of a tull-widtn
two-story wooden porcn that once covered this elevation. JUST wnen ThlS DOXCn wWas
conscructed 15 not Known, ana No photos have been tound thRat show 1T 1n pLlace. wnac
is known, however, 1s that its second Story was reachea Dy ascendaing an exterior
stairs and it is also xnown that the present center wlindow opening in the second
story was once a door opening that gave access to a dance hall that occupiea the
entire second story of the uprignht for a number of years. It is also not Known when
the porch was removea, but 1t was gone and the door opening had been replaced with
the smaller window opening visible today prior to 1930 (when Frank Kozlik ana his
wite took over the tarm).

The second story ot this elevation contains three window openings (the center one ot
which has brick work below its sill that is clearly a later infill) ot the same type
and design as the ones describea above, but these openings are shorter than the ones
below. Centered in the gabie end above them 15 a bulls-eye window that is rimmed
with a corbelled course ot alternating red and cream-colored header course brick.
There is also a thin cream brick chimney shatt with a corbelled top that is placed
on the riageline 1n the center ot the root.

'he north-tacing elevation ot the silde wing 1s totally covered by a tull-length one-
story snallow-pitched hipped root ell. 'he lert-hana third ot this elevation
cons1sts of blank wail surrtace wnile the right-nana two-thlrds contalns an inset one-
story porch., ‘the north-tacing wall surtace ot this porch 1s three-bays-wide. The
left two bays each contain a single segmental-archea winaow opening tilled with a
two-over-two light window ot the same slze as those 1n the second story ot the
upright. ‘'hese windows both have corpelled brick hood moids ana are ldencical 1n
design to the windows 1in the uprignt. ‘The thira pay trom the lett consists or a
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single segmental-arched doo0r openind Cnat COncains a later one-1i1ght over three
panel door. At a later gdate within the Deriod Of S1GN1f1Cance this porch was
enclosed with a CL3aphoard-coversed wall Into wnlch 15 Set 3 group Of L[Our Lwo-over-
tWo rlat-arcnea WiNCOWS 3nQ 3 Twelve-iidnt STOrm Q00r. Ln acdition, the original
raised rioor Or Che DOLCHA Nas Deen repiacea With & DOULeC CONCrete 31an.

The east-tacing Side ejievation 0Of the apriant wing or the hHouse 15 ALMOST compieteiry
covered by whal would otherwise De The wWes{-facing eLevation of the 31de wing and 1Lt

“t

15 devold Or windowW openinds or oTtaer arcnitectural teatures ‘'ne one-story east-
racing elevation Of The s51ide wing i5 asyMmetyr1cal in des:ign ang 1s Composed 0L the
ends or tne LwWo Side e£1i1S ana Or the taiier center pertion, all tnree eiements ot
wnich are piaced in the 3ame plane. ‘'he same tiscla Doards ang crown moidings that

ornament the gaplie end ot the center portion also torm the cornice ot tne eils.
‘nere are no openings in the ends of the 2i!3, but the end of thne cCenter portion 1is
TWo-Days-wide and CONS1sSts OrL LWo double nung TWo-over-two-lignht segmentai-arcnea
W1ndows on tne f1rsT STOry and a CLLCULAr WlNAOW above tnat 1S centered in the ganie
end. kach Or tne rirst ti0o0r WlNAOWS rurnisnes Light to a tirst tloor bearoom white
the bull's-eye window Lignts Tthe attic.

The south-tacing rear elevatlon Ot the house is Simiiar in many respects to tne
north-facing main facace. ‘I'ne SOUth eLievatlon OL Che UDrignt 1S asymmetrical in
design and two-bays-wide. '‘he f1ISt STOry pays are OLfset to The rignt Of tne cnes
in the story apove ana they each cContaln & tall segmentai-arched WINAOW opening tnat
1s 1dentical 1n size ana design to the ones on the rirst story ot the main tacade.
Both ot these openings serve the dining/tront room ot the house. 'I'wo identical
window openings are centerea on the secona story apove.

The south-facing elevation of the slde wing 1S also composed entirely of a one-story
shallow-pitched hip roof ell. ‘'this ell is four-bays-wide and contains three
segmental-arched window openings ot the same size as those found on the wall surtace
ot the inset porch on the main tacace. ‘l'hese openings are placed to the iett ot a
segmental-arched entrance door opening that contains a tiat-arched tour-panel door.
For unknown reasons, the wall surtaces between these tour openings contains large
areas ot red brick rather than the cream Drick that makes up the bulk of the waltl
surtace. ''his appears to be the same Drick that 1s also used 1n the corbelled hood
molds and voussoirs on the nouse, so its use here may represent a decision based on
economic necessity. ‘There 1s also a tall, thin cream brick chimney shaft with a
corpelled top that is placea on the ridgeline or the main root.

The west-tacing side elevation ot the nouse consists ot tne side elevation of the
upright wing. ‘Thls elevation is two-stories i1n height, three-pays-wide, and is
symmetricai 1n design. The rirst story ot each pay contalns a tall window opening
ot the type that t1lls the bays on the other elevations ot the upright. The two
right-hand windows provide light to a bedroom while the other one nelps light the
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tront parior. ‘The sSecond 3THCies 0L TNese DAY3 =23ach ConCald 3nortensa verslons ot
the same segmentai-arcned wWinCow used Delow. ‘fhe heads oOf these wWindows cut into
the fascla DOArd 3and these are the shortest of the three aqually wide put dlfterent
height segmental-arched Windows used on the nouse, 311 0r wnlCh 3re2 CWO-0OVerXr-two
lignt doubie nung wooden sasn.

When the current gwner urcnasea tne Halaga tarmsteaq eariy in L
owned and occupled py n¥ A0ZLlk since L¥Y3sY, ana ne told them T
nothing to tne house :n the way 0of alterations Quring his
‘this was in addition TO Che tact that the house nas oniy

-

s
Fr

bS

D
a

state wnen tne CUrrent owners TCOX DOSSess1ion.

Aslde from the aadition of modern utllirtias (and & pathroom), LT LS the current
owner's 1ntent to rehab, rather than to remodel the 1nterior 0f the ncuse. T'his
. a1

rehabirlitation 1s currently 1n process, and as a result, construction details nave
been reveaiea that would not have otherwise Dbeen tound. ‘the tirst cecision was to
replace the very rougn and now baaly Ccracked origilnal piaster usec Lo C£OAT ail the
walls and mMOSt Or tTne cellings tnrougnout the nouse. 'I'Nis COarse DLAsTer was mixed
Wlth a bilnding of hay and was atrixed TCo the walls Dy being laid over tnhousands Ot
square-cut nalls that were driven into the lathing. 'he resuiting surtace was very
rough by today's standards ana more than a century of seasonal expansion and
contraction {(the house was neatea by a stove 1n the Kkitchen until thls year) had
left 1t 1n very rough condition. Removing this plaster led to the discovery ot the
metnhod ot artixing 1t to the lathes and to the nature of the lathes themselves. 'The
ceiling lathes are traditional, being one 1nch thick by two-inch-wide sawn strips.
The wall lathe, however, consists ot horizontal, one-inch-thick planks that range
anywhere from nine to tifteen inches 1n width. ‘'hese planks are roughly planed,
have roughly sawn edges, ana cover all the perimeter walls and all the original
interior partition wails as welli. The removal ot the plaster has reaftirmed that
the brick is the original ciadding ot the house and 1t has also made it possible to
more precisely determine the nature of additions and alterations to the interior.

The interior has unaergone some alterations over the years but in general the
original first story room iayout has survived intact and most ot its simple originail
woodwork is still i1ntact as well.? 'The first story ot the uprignht wing contains the
living room, dining/tront rocm, a bedroom and an entrance hall that contains a
straight run ot stairs that goes up to the second story. At an early date an
original coorway Llocated in the partltion wall between the Living room anc the space
that is now called a becroom was closed otr and a CLoSer was Created at the nerth

4 A tloorplan of the house as 1T was at the time ot the LYY/ sale 1s included as
Appendix A. ‘This map was made 1n lY33, long petore the plaster was removed.
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and ot Che Dedroom. Utherwise, The 0or:ginal rloor DLan 9t thls sSTory 1s lntact.
¥he £100r 0f the L1YrST STOrY 15 I33N10Nea IYXOm 2--1NCN-WlCe DOAXas. All oL Tie
INTerior d00rs are a LwWo-over-Lwo DaNei design, Cne pDanels are ralsea, anc ail the
0ri1ginal door haraware such as tne decorative ninges and the simple white porcelain
d00r Knobs are sStiil 1NCaECt. ln aagition, Ail tne originai woed TrIm Lnh these rooms
15 St1il 1ntact as weii.
'he d1N1ng/Lront YOOm 1§ 3430 ALMOST SQUare 1n DLan. Ln thls r0oOm, The Or1gilnal
WO0Q LlQOring Aa3s DEeen Covered QVer WiTn [i0r3ai DATCerN LINCLeUum and tha origlna:
pDiaster celilng Nas Deen repiaced 3T SOMe TimMe QUring The perlo¢ Or signi:ticance
with a smooth-rinisned pLasTter Ceiling. #OUr GOOYs ODen LNTto TRLS room, one in cne
east wall, one 1n tne west wail, and twWo on the sSOUTh wali. Placed hai:f way up thne
South waii between the twWo 400YS 1S a chimney shelr supporting the pase Ot the
cnimney that once serveq thls Wing. C1YCUiar ODEN1ngs tor sStovepipes pierce Tnls

e L1ViNg room anG also 1nto the

Shatrt ana open 1nto DOTh Tne 2ining room ana th
seconda story above.

The almost sqguare pLan L1ving room sUllL retalns 1Ts 0riglnal window and docr
£asings ancd the pase ot 1t3 walls 1s naldden bV gx-inch-tall molded pasepoards. in
typical tashion, the trim items 1n this room (and the identical ones in the entrance
hall) are more elaborately mecicea tnan tfe very DasiC ones tound in the other

rooms. ‘he removal ot the ce1ling plaster 1in this room has also revealed that the
lower part ot the space between the ceiling lathes and the second story tloor
decking is packed with a nogging-like mixture of hay and plaster, but the purpose ot
thils mixture {(1nsulation?/ sound deadening?) 1s not clear.

To the left (east) ot tne i1ving room 1S the rectilinear entrance haill. ‘'he main
entrance door opens 1nto this roem, a second door to the riant opens inte the living
room and a third door at the rear ot the hall opens into the dining/ tront room.

The open stalrcase is placed against the west wall ot the hall and it has a straignht
run of 15 steps. ‘Yhe edge of the tread ot each of these steps has two simple turned
balusters that support & 4"-wide hand rail and the tower end or the handrail 1is
terminated by a tine turned newel post that rests on an octagonal base.

So tar as can be determined, the second Story 0t the upright wing was orlginally a
clear span broken only by the shatt ot the chlmney. Sometime later, but witnin the
period ot silgniticance, plastered partition walls made of standard traming and
iathing were piacea on top ot the bH#-incn-wlde original tlooring to supdivide tnis
space 1nto two south-racing pedrooms separated from a singlie iarge north-racing
bedroom by a central hallway set on an east-west axls. These later partitions are
now 1n the process of being removed. Placed on the east wall ot the second story
hall at the top ot the stalrway 15 a small tour-panel door that opens into the attic

space apove the side wing.

The tirst story ot the side wing 1s placed a step aown trom the upright wing and the
rectillinear plan original kitchen space takes up tne core of this wing. Arrayed
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arouna 1t are a pantry and an encleossd entrance vestibuie on the 3cuth, TWo bedrooms
on the east, and an enciosed poOrch on tne nortn, ALl the rooms in this wWing have
the same planx walis and tpne same celling laths that are touna 1n tThe uprignt wing
anc the same mlxture QI nay anad piaster nogging 1s round ahove this ce:irilng lath
Co0. AL some Ctime 1n Cne eariy twentlatn century, mMAatChbDOard walnscotlig was placec
over the lower three reet or tnhis room ang the original weod tlo0ring was covered
with linotleum. New Capinetry was also

this

L00, and the original 4ry sin¥k in

instaiied i1n Che pantry at about tnis time

3Dace was converted Lo 3§ waet S1inK.

m

ni

131nal plaster nas ais0 r2vealea tnat tne partition wall thac
T DeQroOmS tIOmM 22ch other 1s Or a later data than the
gesting that tnls was originatly a larger room that was Later

v dictated. ‘'‘here 1s alsc a second brick cnimney shart that
L of the Kitchen and the west wall ot the northernmost of the
0, a noieé 1n Tae cnlmney TNat 15 now DLugOea SNOWS Where & now-
C2 2¥Nausied & WooG Srove in tae £1tcnen.

The removal 0t tne
5eparates the TtWe
perimeter walis,

subdivided &s necessi
runs down the 2ast wa
tWo bedrooms. He:e T
yanisned scoveplpe on

D(n
m [N}

uverall, the Haiaca KeslGence 1S 1N exXxcellent ang largely 0riginal concltien today,
with the few moairications 1t nas unaergone being Ot a Lype that Can De easlly
reversed.

M3p No. 2  Garage Buliding Contriputing ca. i9iu

I'his 1S a smatl, simple, astyL1stTiC utliltarian rorm bullaling that 1s locatea jusct

To the west Oor the nouse {(Map No. l}. 'I'he garage bullaing 1s one-story-tail, 1s ot
frame construction, and measures approximately Z/-feet-square. The building's eiqgnt-
by-eight inch posts ana sills now rest mostly on poured concrete tootings, althougn

a few of the original stone tootings are still in place. The walls are covered in
vertical wooden boards that are backed by battens visiblie in the inside. ‘The
building is sheltered by a standing seam metal-covered nip root that overliays the
wide board decking beneatnh. Thls root has overhanging eaves and these are supportea
by exposed ratter ends on all tour sides.

The principal facade ot the garage taces west, is symmetrical in design, and
contains two large tiat-archea door openings separated by a post. These openings
are covered by two sliding barn doors that run on an overhead track. A single smalil
square tlat-archea window opening 1s centered on each of the other three elevations,
put all ot these openings are now covered over with siding. ‘'he interior has a dirt
tloor that is partially covered over by wide - now gquite deteriorated - wooden
boards. fThis building 1is used tor storage and as a garage and 1t 1S 1n generally
gooa condltion and is coansidered to pe contributing To the dlstrice.
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Map No. Z Lairy Barn Conrriducing ca.1si3
'ne 1argest DUlliding or tne farwm Complex 13 Tnis one-sitory reCtiilnear Dian /Y-tooT-
long oy se-root-4e225 35:LYLISELIC 4T:iiitarlan form, dable-roored Cimper trame dalry
Darn tnat 15 siced in vertical wooden poOards. '‘hese wWalls NowW encicse an azirliier
anad mucn SMEiier :10Q0 CONSCruction D23rn TNat was Dro2aply Dulit DYy J0Senn Leaving,
tne man Lrom whom eorde Haizada DOQGAT TNe L rm Ln o iEgf.
This eariler narn was Or1ginaiiy 2 31MPie Japie-rocred ¢esign 31MmiLlar TOo the Darn
that now 2ncloses 1t, DUt It was much smailer, measur:ing :¥-teet-1long DY 3:i-fest-
deep. ‘e Wwails of thls early barn ares 3till 1ntact, althouch 1n poor Conaition,
ana tney rest on a2 rleidstone IQUACGETISn LNAT Nas Deen raneweg 3NC DarTiaiiy covered
OVer 1n Diaces WiLn COoncretse. 'ine 1od3 CN2msSelvas are nand newn and sgquared and
measure rrom Y-iy" TALCK ana from i/-Ls" Tall. lney are chinkeg wWith a piaster-iixe
mortar and are joineda with Qove-tall notcnhlng at the corners. fne massiva 10gS Chal
make up the side ei8vatlons 0f thls Darn are ail JZ-tfeet 1n iength. Une of the 1ods
10g nigh up on each or these sides 1S repeartedly notcned to racelve the sguared 2nds
0r the Deam &nas CTHAT Support tne parn's aTtrlc Lio0r. BAILN C00r 0Denings were set
1nto the tront andg rear walis and tnes2 openings were L3ater surmounted witn multi-
~,~ '

3

i1ight transoms to bring Light 1nto the Darn's 1nterior. AL Some point during the
period ot s1gnltlcance the t£ioor or TRlS DArn was covered wilth concrete, and several
metal stalls adced at thls time are stiil 1n evidence today. ‘The original north anc
south-tacing gapie ends and the root Or the log parn have long since peen removed,
however, and the upper tloor of thils Darn (which 1s used ror hay storage) 1S now
open to the celiing ot the larger barn tnat now sheiters 1it.

The larger parn that is visible today was apparently bullt by George Halada around
the same time that he bullt his house. The ridgeline ot the asphalt-shingle-covered
root or tne new barn runs north-south ana the entlre structure 1S upheld py massive
timper framing that 1S held together with wooden pedqs. The walls or tne new parn
are set on rubblestone toundation walls that have peen partially covereac with
concrete. These walls are bulilt around the log barn and thelr board-covered walls
also enclose a sz-tcot-wide by sb-toot-ilong addition that 1s attached to the south
end ot the Log parn. ‘'he interior or thls aadition 1s dividea 1nto two roughly
equal-width parts. ‘he north wall ot the lett-hana (nortn) halt 1s tormea by the
south wall ot the log barn. ‘'his nalf has a dirt tioor that is accessed by a palr
ot tull-neight siiaing barn doors that open west onto the rarmyard and this space is
open to the root of tne barn, ‘the right-hana (south) halt ot the aadition consists
ot an enclosea tirst STOry whose tront (west) haitr 1S rioored with airt ang whose
rear (west) hair Is fioored with & concrece silan. The walls ot this first scory
space are rougnhiy piastered and & small silding Darn d0Or on thne wesT-iacing maln
tacade ot the parn gives access to 1t. Thls 3pace appears to have Deen used as a
workshop. Llts rlat root 1s used tor hay storage, as 1s the tlat root of the log
barn, and the open space between these tWo hay storage areas gives easy access to

the hay.
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There 13 al30 3 SN23-YOO0Led ONe-STOLY Lo-fo0T-Wlde DY J£-L£00C-de22p 3adition Chnat was
added To the north =nc 9r TAlS DArn as well. Nis 3gdltion 1S Iramec witn sawn
fumber and Lt Nas & alrt £i00r, CONCIETEe Loundatlon walls, and it £O00 15 s5ided wWith
vertical wooden Doards. ‘he roor 0t thN1s 304ition 1S NOW In & STtate Of Coilapse ana
1T will propaply De removed. I'Ne remalnder Of Che Ca.ld/8 parn is in gooa
condition, DUt Tne NOItn Wali Of Tne 10g DErn 1S Daciy CeIer1orated, DEIng DArtialiiy
open to the weather as a result or the coliapse 0L Cne root Oof tne s5hed roo:
aaaition.

M3D No. 4 ‘‘hresning Harn Contripucing Cca.i¥78

'his large barn 15 sited on the SL14anT Slope 0f the south sige ot the Larmyard, a
slope Jjust sutrficlent to permlt the south-taclng eievatlon Or The CONCIete DLOCK ana
concrete plinth foun@atlon wail to De Largv-y exposed. ‘I'nls parn is rectilinear in
plan, one-story 1in neignt, ana 1T MEXSUresS bH-Ieet-iOng Dy 4U-reet-wige. ‘rhe

1
puilding 1s sided in vertical boards. ‘these walls are supported py a massive wooadsn
peggea timber rrame anc rise up the OVernanglng eaves Of TNe STANdIng Seam meTtzi-
covered gable roor of the barn, whose riageline runs east-west. 'I'ne wood
underneatn tnls ro0r is 13SNloneC IX0Mm The Same Very W1C2 ZOLBgniy Dianeag
(some are /4" across) tnat are used as decXlng under tne roors OL the 0otn
trame outbuiidings 1n the rarmsteag; Less wlde DEaErds are use¢ 10 the nou

'he plan of the barn consists Ot a lb-foot-wide dirt-tioored center portion

accesseg via large palred siiaing barn deoors centered on botn the north and soutn
facaaes ot the barn. 1o the right ana iert or thls center porticn are two Z5-root-
wWwide open plts iined Dy the deep toundation walls ot the barn. A date 1nscribed on
the foundation wailS shows that tney were bullt in 1Y5L, ana they were buiit to
replace the deteriorated original rubblestone walis. The barn is still in good
condition today and is almost totally intact save tor the renewed foundation.

Map No. b Machine Shed contributing ca.ly7s

This saitpox form gable-rooted timper trame astylistic utilitarian form building is
believed to have been built by George Halada at about the same time as the other
timber trame buildings on the farm. Thils building is one-story in height,
rectilinear in plan and measures 35-teet-wide by ZU-teet-deep. Vertical boards
Cclad the exterlor walls ang are supported by a masslve pegged timber frame. The
puilding has a dirt floor ana the posts o:r the trame rest directly on this tloor,
wnhich accounts tor the pronounced L1St 1t now has. ''he gablie roor of the building
is tramed in sawn lumber and the root deck that unceriies the standing seam metal
root 1s made up ot wide rough-planed boards Llke those on the tarmstead's other
timber trame puilaings. The maln tacade or thls building taces east and there 1s a
small sliding door to the lett and a larger one to the right. 'I'nis parn 1S now used
tor machline storage ana 1ts original use 1S unknown.



NPS Korm LU-3Juyva
(Rev, d-ub)

W1SConsin Word Processor Kormat
Approved /87

United sStates bepartment 0t the lnterior
National Park service

NATIUNAL REGLISTER U HISTURLIC PLACES

CONTINUATIOUN SHE®Y

George Halaga Farmsteaqa, lown or Monrpeller, Xewaunee Uounty, wisconsin
section numoer i rage 9

The west elevatlon ot thals barn 1s shorter than the maln £acade ana its iength is
covered oy a very shallow pltcned, 3spnalt shingle-coverea, sned-rooted &ii THh3T 13
ot a tater gate than the parn. Thls €Ll hasz pDoured CONCrets2 roungacicn walls ana
1TS verticai Doard S1Cing 1S attachnes TO 3 Sawn frame Ttnat 1S naliea togetner. LiLe
the Larger barn TO wnicn Lt 13 attacned, tials @ii NAS & pronouncea L1sC, DUT 1T 13
now i1n guite DOOr <oncition.

Map_No. b Macnine Sned £ontriputing ca.igis

This smail DULLidINg wWas originaily tree-stindilng, DUt 3t Some Clme during the periocd
0L 5:1gniticance 1t was 2ttached to tne small parn just descriped (Map Beo. 2 oy a
Shallow-pDLrLTCnhec snhea-rocred hAypnen &na DY 3 CONCLRUATION OL tne radar eli oI tne
iarger barn. LT 15 rectilinear 1n Dlan, me3asures L./-reet-wide DY jl-ieet-cdeep, and
has a dlrt tloor. LT3 main racades tace east and west 3nd they each consist almost
entirely 0f a8 Da1I OI large outward-swinglng Doara-and-batten doors. The wails rest
on itater poureda concr Cal poaras supported Dby a

2Te L[O0TINIS 3and are s1ded in verti
massive timper ame neia togetner W1TH wWooden pegs. »Oor many vears THls Dulialng
has housea an unusea ang almost totally intact "“Yne dumming sird ‘'hresher” made by
the Wood Brothers. ‘'ne original instruction manual tor this machine 1s still extant
and hand-lettereg dates on the side 0t the macnlne show TN3T 1T was i1n use as late
as Lyeh.

'he one-story shea-roof nypnen that connects thls Duiiding To The DArn NexXt 4oo0r 1S

li-teet-wide and consists of & rootf tnat spans the ground between the two
buildings. +1his nyphen 1s constructed of wood and 1t 1s in & ruinous state.

Map No. 1 Wood-working Shop Contributing 1941+

This astylistic utilitarian pbuilding was bullt as a wooaworking shop by Frank Kozlik
in 1941, Kozlik ownecd and operated a portable saw mill and did custom sawing. This
buiiding served as hls bDase of operations. 'Yhls 1s tne newest building in the
tarmstead and is rectilinear in plan, two-stories in height, ana measures 4y-teet-
wide by Zb-teet-deep. ‘he tirst story ot this buillding has a airt floor enclosed by
concrete piLocK walls that rest on a poured concrete toundation. ''he trame
construction second sStory 1s sided in vertical boards. ‘The overhanging gable root
of the buiiding is covered in asphalt shingtes ana its ridgeline runs east-west.

the siope of the site nhices some or the tirst story OI the east-tacing elevation,
but most ot the rirst story is visiple. ‘fhe main tacade taces south ana its first
story tfeatures two flat-arched window openings, an entrance door, and a garage door
opening. This building 1s in good, original condition and stil! retains most of 1its

original contents.

4 The date Nov. lb, L1941, 1s 1nscribed on the top ot tne rirst story waldt.
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Map No. 3  Macnine shop ConLriduting ca. L83y

'h1s Bulldlng 13 now CONnNectad to the adJacent woOd-WOrKINgG sSnep (Map No. /) Dy a
rlat decx roof that covers 3 storage 5pace petween the DULIAIngS. ©wriginally,
tnough, TH1S was a3 rree-stanaing, Lrame Construction, "L" DLEN DULLICING CONS1STing
0L a larger one-anc-a-nalr 5tory UPrignt Japnie-roO0fed WING and a smalliar one-story
gapie-roored wing. ‘Ihie mMaln 1acacse Of TAlS DUllQlng races east. ‘the exterior wails
0f DOCh WLngs ars 31c¢ed 1n sShiplap and rest on deterlorated tleldstone tounaactlon
walls. ‘I'ne uprignt wWing nas 3 rirst sTOry d1vided 1nto twWo sSpaces, DOTA or wWhich
have dlrt Lloors. '‘fhe rfront (2asT) 3pDace Nas DLasTered Walls ana Contains the
I3rm’'s macnine sSnop. A LiigGnt Of ST31rs piacec 3:00G TNe 2asSTXLy walii O Tthis
Space ascenac TOo Che untinlshed aCCLLC 5SCOrY Or the UPrignc, which 15 used ror sTorags

space. The rear space 0f thls Wing 1s aiso used ror storage and can only be
accessed py a smali 5Liding 4Qo0r on the north-tacing side ejevation. The side wing
1S used ror storage to0, 15 Qirt-rigored and 15 accessed trom a& aeor in the machin2
shop. Among tie thlngs LT Contains are tne orlginal SCOrm windows LOr tne £irst
Story or the hcuse.

'Nis entire buiiqQing 1S nOW in pOOY COnaltion aue tO lack or malntenance ana tne
uneven sercliing ot the rgunaation walls.

'here are no non-contributing bullaings 1in the tarmstead and all of 1ts bulldings
are generally characterizead by a high level of inteqrity, especlally considering
their age and utititarian purpose. ‘I'he house 1s 1in very good ana hignly original
conditlon, but most of the outpbuiiaings are in only good to rair condition and will
neea consideraple attention it they are to continue to be viable resources.



8, Statement of significance
Certifying official has considered the signitlcance of this property in relation to

other properties: nationally statewide _ X locally
Applicable National Register Criteria A B X _C D
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) A B C D ) F G

Areas of Signiticance

(enter categories from instructions) Period of Signiticance Significant Dates
Architecture ca.lyiy-1941" ca.lgigs

Culturat Affitiation

N/A
Signifticant Person Architect/Bullder
N/A Unknown

State significance of property, and justity criteria, criteria considerations, and
areas and periods of significance notea above.

Significance

The George Halada Farmstead is being nominated to the National Register ot Historic
Places (NRHP) for its local signiticance under National Register (NR) criterion C.
Research was undertaken to assess this potential utilizing the NKR significance areas
0t Agriculture and Architecture, both themes which are also identified in the State
of Wisconsin's Cultural Resource Management Pian (CRMP). ‘I'his research centered on
evaluating the resources in the farmstead utilizing the [talianate subsection of the
Architectural Styles study unit and the Gabled Ell form and Agricultural
Outbuildings study units of the Architecture theme portion of the CRMP.? The
results of this research is detailed below and shows that the highly original
Italianate style-influenced Gabled Ell form Halada farmhouse is locally significant
under criterion C for 1its architectural signiticance and it also determined that all
of the agricultural outbuiidings associated with this farmhouse are also of
significance as good, representative examples of buildings of their particular
types.

Historical Background

The George Halada farm property 1s located in the center of Montpelier Township in
Kewaunee County, approximately one-and-a-half miles northeast of the unincorporated
community of Pilsen. It consists of a 118.00 acre parcel of land located in Section
21, Township 23 North, Range 23 East. The present owners of the Halada farm are

James and Debra Steffel.

> The period of significance covers the period during which the farmhouse and all
the contributing agricultural outbuildings were built.

¢ The date of construction of the George Halada farmhouse (Map No. 1) and the timber
frame outbuildings (Map Nos. 3, 4, 5, & 6).

7 Wyatt, Barbara (Ed.). Cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin. Historic
Preservation Division, State Historical Society of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin,
1986. Vol. 2.~

X See continuation sheet
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Kewaunee County was formed in 1852 and the earliest settlement occurred in the
eastern townships bordering on the Lake Michigan shoreline and included the city ot
Kewaunee. The organization of the Town of Montpelier and other centrally located
townships occurred not long atterwards.

At the first meeting of the |Kewaunee] County Board, held on Nov. 11, 1856, a
resolution was passed organizing from and atter April L, 1857, the 'lowns of
Carlton, Frederickton, Montpelier, Corryville, Casco, West Kewaunee, and Red
River. The early history dates back to April i, 1855, when into the deep shadows
ot the "Forest Primevai" .... and the hunting grounds ot the OUneidas, Chippewa
and Menominee lndians, came the early settlers to make their home.

The honor ot giving the Town its name was awarded to the oldest settler in the
township at that time, Thomas Paddleford, who came here from the state of vermont,
in the year 1855, named it Montpelier, atter the capitol of his home state.

The soil ot the township consists ot red loam and light soil and on the east side
some land connects to what is known as the big Kewaunee swamp. [t (the town] is
watered by numerous creeks and in the early years was mostly covered with pine,
hardwood and cedar.

The township is also rich in limestone in the vicinity of Ellisville lone mile to
the east of the Halada farm| and at one time there were seven limekilns operating
in the township. ... This lime, atter being finished in the kiln, and slaked,
was mixed with sand, made a rich mortar which was used for building stone
foundations, laying bricks and plastering for homes, churches, schools and other
building purposes.®

The title abstract for the Halada farm and early plat maps show that the first owner
was Joseph Ledvina, an immigrant from Bohemia for whom specific information has not
yet been found. Ledvina, however, was and is a common name on Montpelier Township
plat maps. The earliest map ot the Town shows that in 1876, Ledvina's brother,
John, owned the adjacent farm to the east now owned by Richard G. and Lillian
Ledvina, and the map also shows that the farm directly across what is now CTH F was
then owned by H. Ledvina.?

George Halada (1848-1916) purchased the farm in question from Joseph Ledvina in 1877
for the sum of $2125.00.%°

® Prahl, Arnold (Ed.). Montpelier Township Centennial: 1857 - 1957. Algoma: Algoma
Record-Herald, 1957. Pg. 5. A copy is located in the local history collections of

the Brown County Library in Green Bay.

® Harney, E. M. & M. G. Tucker. Map of Kewaunee County, Wisconsin. J. K. Kauber &
Co., Milwaukee, 1876. 'This map also shows a house on this property at that date,
but tax rolls for the Township kept in the Kewaunee County courthouse do not
indicate a value greater than one dollar an acre until atter the property transfers
to Halada in the tollowing year.

9 The Kewaunee Enterprise. Nov. 16, 1877, pg. 4.
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Mr. Halada was born 1n Bohemia 63 years ago and came to this country when 18 years
old, locating in the town of franklin, Kewaunee county, where he lived until he
came to Wausaukee [Marinette County] about eight years ago. For several years he
did farm work 1in the summer time, cooking in the lumber camps during the winter,
and with his savings he bought a farm at Franklin.

At the age of 27 he was married to Miss Barbara Ledvina, who livea only about a

year. About two years later he married Miss Catherine Ledvina, a sister of his

first wife. Besides his widow he is survived by two daughters, Anna Edlebeck of
Montpelier, Mary Edlebeck of wausaukee, and one son, James ot Casco.**

Halada was followed in death by his wife, Catherine Ledvina Halada (1858-1Y9Z2) a tew
years later.

She (Mrs. Haladal was born November 25, 1858, at Montpelier, Kewaunee, County,
where she was married to George Halada. After retiring from farming she and her
husband took up their residence in Wausaukee where the death of Mr. Halada
occurred several years ago.

The survivors are a son, James Halada of Casco; daughter Mrs. L. M. Edlebeck of
wausaukee; step-daughter Mrs. Emil Edlebeck, Montpelier; brother M. G. Ledvina,
Wausaukee . t*

The title abstract for the Halada tarm shows that the Haladas sold the tarm to their
daughter Anna and her husband, Emil Edlebeck, in December, 1907.*° The Edlebecks
occupied the farm until they in turn sold the farm to their own daughter, Anna, and
her husband, Frank Kozlik in April, 1927. Anna Kozlik was born Anna F. Edlebeck in
the town ot Montpelier on January 28, 1901. She and Frank Kozlik were married at
St. Joseph's Catholic Church in Pilsen, May 12, 1925. They lived on the former
Halada farm until Mrs. Kozlik's death 1in 1465, and Frank Kozlik continued to live
there alone until February, 1992, when the farm was sold to the present owners.**
Since the Steffel family is also an old Montpelier township family and related to
the Haladas, it can be arqued that the Halada farm has been in continuous family
ownership since the land was cleared in the 1860s and it is now ready to begin its
fifth generation of such ownership.

11 Luxemburg News. May 5, 1916, pg. 1. Obituary of George Halada. Halada was
living on his tarm in Franklin Township when he purchased the Montpelier tfarm. The
tax rolls are clear, however, in showing that Halada afterwards lived on the
Montpelier property. He served as the Town assessor from 1884-1889.

12 The Independent. Wausaukee, Wisconsin, Aug. 19, 1922, pg. 1. Obituary of
Catherine Halada.

13 Abstract ot Title in the possession of James and Debra Steffel. The size of the
farmstead has not changed since it was created except for being slightly reduced by
easements.

14 Luxemburg News. June 10, 1965, pg. 10. Obituary of Anna Kozlik.
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It should also be noted that all of these families share a common Bohemian ethnic
heritage. This is not a coincidence since Kewaunee County in general and the Pilsen
area in particular are places that are noted as centers of Czech-Bohemian emigration
in the Eastern European section of the CRMpP's Settlement Theme.

Czech settlement in Wisconsin (and elsewhere in the United States) was the
earliest of any ot the Slavic language groups and roughly coincided with the main
body of German rather than Slavic immigration. It consisted largely of farmers
and skilled tradesmen, although several retfugee intellectuals entered the state as
well.

The Czechs generally settlead in two distinct parts ot the state: the eastern
lakeshore region, particularly in the counties ot Racine, Miiwaukee, Manitowoc,
and Kewaunee, and in the biutt and coulee region of the west-central and southwest
portion of the state.

Czech settlement in Kewaunee County began in 1854, with a small group of settlers
trom Milwaukee forming the original Czech population. From the beginning, the
Czechs constituted the largest ethnic group in the county. ‘'he village ot
Kewaunee and the hamlets ot Stangelville, Krok, Pilsen, and Slovan represented the
areas of heaviest concentration. Like the earlier Manitowoc and Caledonia
settlements, these colonies were originally established in heavily forested areas
and were transtormed into productive tarming units.*®

Thus, the various interrelated families associated with the Halada tarmstead are
part of a distinct ethnic heritage. This heritage has left its imprint on this area
and some of it is visible in the farmstead's resources.

Agriculture

Like so many of the other early farms in this area, the George Halada farm
eventually became a dairy farm and it remained one until recently. The introduction
to the Agricultural theme section of the CRMP states that "Dairying remained the
dominant agricultural pursuit [in Wisconsin] throughout the nineteenth and twentieth
centuries" and noted that "By 1899 they (dairy cows] could be found on more than 90
percent of Wisconsin farms."*® ‘The Industrialized Dairy Production study unit
portion of this theme, however, does not identify Kewaunee County as one of the
leading counties in Wisconsin in the 1880s in terms of buttermaking and
cheesemaking. Thus, while the Halada tarmstead was a part ot a major Wisconsin
industry, it was not located in an important center of that industry. Nor has any
information been found that indicates that this farm was anything other than a
typical example of its type, and an informal windshield survey ot the surrounding

% Wyatt, op. cit., Vol. 1, settlement, pgs. 8-10, 8-12.
s Ibid. Vol. 2, Agriculture, pg. 11-5.
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area undertaken tor this nomination tound that examples ot similar resources 1n the
area were widespread, although no tarmstead was tound that exhibits the same degree
ot integrity as the Hatada tarm.

Nelther does the research undertaken for this nomination indicate that any of the
owners of this tarm were signiticant persons within the meaning ot the term as used
in Bulletin 1bA. All the owners appear to have been respected members of their
community but nothing indicates that they achieved a distinction that would make the
farm eligible tor the National Reglster on this basis.

Architecture

The principal signiticance of the George Halada Farmstead centers on the survival ot
the unusually intact [talianate style-influenced gabled ell form farmhouse (Map No.
1) that Halada had built ca.1878, and on the collection ot unusually intact timber
frame outbuildings that are associated with it. These buildings are also of special
interest because of their associations with teatures that may characterize Czech-
Bohemian settlement.

The Gabled Ell form section ot the Vernacular Forms Study Unit of the CRMP gives the
temporal boundaries of the occurrence of this form in Wisconsin as being from 1860-
1910 and notes that:

The gabled eil form is one of the most ubiquitous of the mid - to late -
nineteenth century vernacular house types. ... The gabled ell includes buildings
that are cruciform, or "L" or "T" in plan. However, trom the main elevation, all
but the cruciform version appear as two gabled wings perpendicular to each other.
... 1f the front gable wing perpendicular to the street contains the main entry,
the form is sometimes classified as an "upright and wing," a term applied by many
students of vernacular architecture to buildings of this description. The
"upright" is the front gable section perpendicular to the street. ... Gabled ell
examples exhibit a variety of stories, although the most common seems to be a one
story longitudinal wing connected to a one-and-a-half story wing or "upright."
... 1t heights vary, the longitudinal section parallel to the street is nearly
always the lower. ... fThe clapboard variety of the gabled ell form is by far the
most common, although brick and stone versions appear. Early examples may exhibit
modest references to Greek Revival and Italianate styles.?t?

All of these characteristics are present in the design of the Halada house, making
it a representative example of the form. In addition, though, the house exhibits
characteristics which may be of local significance because they are typical of
houses in this area that were built in the 1870s and early 1880s for Czech-Bohemian
owners.

7 Wyatt, op. cit. Vol. 2, Architecture, pg. 3-5.
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The multiplicity of different ethnic groups that settled in the Manitowoc, Brown and
Kewaunee county areas has made this a fertile area of study tor students of
vernacular architecture. The best known of these is William H. Tishler, a
University of Wisconsin-Madison professor of landscape architecture and a nationally
recognized authority on vernacular architecture and historic landscapes. Tishler's
work relating to rural Belgian settlement architecture in areas in Brown and
Kewaunee counties located just to the north and west ot Montpelier Township is
especially well known but this work was preceded by his earlier interest in the
vernacular architecture associated with the rural Bohemian settlements in Kewaunee
County. This interest ultimately resulted in a survey of farmsteads associated with
Bohemian settlement that was conducted in Montpelier, Casco, Luxemburg and West
Kewaunee townships in the summer of 1983. This tield survey identified some 36
different sites as being of potential signiticance ana concentrated on six of these
sites as being representative of the types found. One ot these six sites was the
George Halada Farmstead (known in the study as the Frank Kozlik lkarmstead). This
house was chosen because "fhe Frank Kozlik house 1s an example of a typical
Vernacuiar brick structure found amongst our travels."+® The survey report goes on
to describe in more detail some ot the salient characteristics that the Kozlik house

represented.

The final category of Bohemian houses we observed is the sBrick House. Built ot
cream-colored bricks these "T", "L", and rectangular, two-story structures were
quite common in Montpelier, Casco, and West Kewaunee townships. Common features
include: cream-colored brick construction; decorative brick arch over windows;
wood trim painted green or red; round windows under gables; wooden overhang
porches.?®

Interestingly enough, Tishler's later research into Belgian vernacular buildings
found a very similar type which he characterized by noting:

Most early brick houses in the area conform to a simple, rectangular, 1l%-story,
gable-roof form. Many examples incorporate a "bulls-eye" window just under the
roof peak on the gable facing the road. 1In some houses, more obvious adornment
was provided with patterns of cream-colored decorative bricks placed at the
corners and/or around the door or window openings.Z2°

The resulting design is in several ways almost a red and cream-colored negative
image of the Kozlik house and it serves to reemphasize the archtypal nature of the
design of the house that is associated with the George Halada Farmstead.

18 Tishler, William H. et al. Bohemian Vernacular Architecture. Madison, 1983,
Unpaginated, unpublished Mss. in the possession of the author.

9 1bid.
20 - . and Erik Brynildson. <“he Architecture and Landscape Characteristics of

Rural Belgian Settlement in Northeastern Wisconsin. Madison, Wisconsin. July,
1986, pg. 0575g-i1.
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Agricultural Qutbuildings

The signiticance ot the Halada karmstead is also enhanced by the survival of its
very intact collection of late nineteenth and early twentieth century agricultural
outbuildings. “he study ot agricultural outbulidings as distinct architectural
entities is stiil 1n its infancy according to the CRMP's Agricultural Outbuildings
study unit and the systematlC wOorK necessary to identity such buildings and to
develop a morphology that describes them has not yet been completed. In the absence
ot such research, "A correlation between crops, technoliogy, ethnicity, and
architecture cannot aiways be made."<* What has been ldentitied and quantified at
this time are such visually distinct types as halt-timber and centric barns ana
types related to single purpose, highly specltic usages such as nhopnouses, corn
cribs, tobacco barns and the iike. For the more common multi-use types ot
agricultural outbuildings tound on the Halada farmstead, however, most of the
background material that will allow them to be properly evaluated has yet to be
produced.

Never-the-less, 1t is still possible to evaluate these buildings according to the
standards embodied in the CRMP, which states that "Like other building forms, the
most significant vernacular ... examples will be those with the highest
integrity."%< Using integrity as an indicator of signiticance for vernacular and
astylistic buildings it appears that the outbuildings associated with the farmstead
may rightly claim NR eligibility. These resources constitute a complete grouping of
resources that individually display the characteristics of their type as described
in the Agricultural Outbuildings subsection of the CRMP. This significance is
enhanced by the highly original condition of these buildings.

The Halada farmstead is also signiticant as an intact grouping of historic
agricultural resources. Groupings such as this are becoming increasingly rare in
every part of Wisconsin due to age, obsolescence and changes in agricultural
practices. As a consequence, identifying these groupings and nominating them to the
NRHP is becoming an important priority. Intact farmsteads such as the one
established by George Halada are thus of considerable importance in providing
information that can be used to establish the significance of other farmsteads in
the state.

Archeological Potentiail

No information was found that suggests that this farmstead contains any resources of
archeological signiticance and the tact that this land has been intensely cultivated
since the middle of the nineteenth century makes such an occurrence unlikely.

21 Wyatt, op. cit., Vol. 2, Architecture 5-1.
22 [pid, pg. 3-10.
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verpali Houndary vescription, tontinued

is located on this pavement edge at a polnt that 1S approximately 2Z50 teet east ot
the point tormed by the intersections ot the east pavement edge Ot the north-soutn
running CTH V ana the south pavement edge ot the east-wesSt running Cis ¢. ‘he
boundary continues eastc on Sald pavement eage Ior approximately s/5 reet, then socuth
approximately SUU reet, then west approximately 375 reet, then nerth approximateLy
500 teet to the PUX. Sa:id boundary contains a roughly rectilinear plot tnat
contalns approximateiv 4.3U acres.
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